United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

ELEVENTH SESSION
Official Records

THIRD COMMITTEE, 738th

MEETING

Wednesday, 23 January 1957,
at 10.45 a.m.

New York

CONTENTS
Page

Agenda item 31:
Draft International Covenants on Human Rights (con-

tinued)
Article 10 of the draft Covenant on Economic, Social
and Cultural Rights (concluded) ................ 289
Organization of work ...ttt iiiiiniiinennnns 291

Chairman: Mr. Hermod LANNUNG (Denmark).

AGENDA ITEM 31

Draft International Covenants on Human Rights
(E/2573, annexes I, Il and III, A/2907 and
Add.1l and 2, A/2910 and Add.1 to 6, A/2929,
A/3077, A/C.3/L.460, A/3149, A/C.3/L.528,
A/C.3/L.532) (continued)

ArticLE 10 oF THE DrRAFT COVENANT oN EcoNOMIC,
Sociar anp CurturaL Ricuts (E/2573, annex T A)
(concluded)

1. Mr. DELHAYE (Belgium) explained that he had
abstained in the vote on the phrase “particularly for
its establishment and while it is responsible for the care
and education of dependent children”, in paragraph
1 of article 10 of the draft Covenant because the gen-
eral formula preceding it was quite satisfactory from
the point of view both of substance (wider protection
for the family) and of form (necessity for synthetic
formulations in the Covenant). However, he had voted
for the paragraph as a whole because it contained
some essential points for which Belgium had pressed
in the Commission on Human Rights.

2. He had voted for most of paragraph 2, and for
the Swedish amendment (A/C.3/L.571), but against
the deletion of the word “particularly”. However, that
word had been deleted, which would presumably result
in limiting protection for mothers to periods, and
doubtless somewhat brief periods, before and after the
birth of a child. That would be less than was already
provided in Belgium. He had also voted against the
USSR amendment (A/C.3/L.577), because it failed
to allow for workers’ participation in the financing of
social security. The Danish amendment (A/C.3/
L.576) improved the text, and he had therefore voted
in favour of it.

3. With regard to paragraph 3, he had voted in fa-
vour of the United Kingdom amendment (A/C.J3/
1..574), not because his delegation objected to the word
“minors”, but because most delegations seemed to pre-
fer the phrase “children and young persons”. He had
been unable to vote in favour of the Romanian amend-
ment (A/C.3/1.575), although Belgium had set the
age limits in question many years previously, because
the proposed provision was out of place in article 10.
4. Finally, he had abstained on the article as a whole,
and reserved the right to comment further on it at a
later stage.

289

5. Mr. BASAVILBASO (Argentina) said that his
delegation had broadly approved of the original text of
article 10, but had voted in favour of setting up the
Working Party because of the many amendments that
had been submitted. The Working Party’s draft (A/
C.3/1..570, para. 4) had seemed satisfactory, but some
of the amendments improved it. The Argentine delega-
tion had not abstained on any of the amendments, as
some unsatisfactory texts had been adopted in the past
as a result of abstentions. However, the negative votes
it had cast did not mean that Argentina would not
sign the Covenants; it would merely do so with certain
reservations. It had voted for all the parts of the first
sentence in paragraph 1, but against the second sen-
tence, which was out of place in article 10. He would
have voted in favour of the Bulgarian amendment (A/
C.3/1..572) if it had been clearer, but had been forced
to vote against it because its insertion would have con-
fused the text. Finally, he had voted for the Working
Party’s draft in preference to the amendments that had
been submitted at a late stage in the Committee’s
deliberations ; however, he was glad that the Romanian
amendment (A/C.3/1.575) had been adopted, in view
of the lofty ideal it expressed.

6. Mr. BRENA (Uruguay) observed that his delega-
tion had previously submitted a text combining the
amendments proposed to the original text of article 10
(E/2573, annex I A) and covering the four funda-
mental ideas contained in the latter. It considered that
many of the provisions now included in the article were
unnecessary and imprecise. The briefest texts were the
least likely to lend themselves to arbitrary interpreta-
tion, whereas verbose texts were always apt to provide
loop-holes for those who wished to evade their re-
sponsibilities. Nevertheless, he had felt obliged to vote
in favour of some rather unsatisfactory provisions, in
order to expedite the Committee’s work.

7. He was surprised that several delegations had
criticized the use of the word “particularly” in para-
graph 2, and had brought about its deletion; the ques-
tion was surely one of protecting the whole community
through the mothers, and not of protecting women qua
women. Finally, he considered that the Romanian
amendment (A/C.3/L.575) was quite unnecessary, as
the setting of an age-limit for child labour was implicit
in the preceding sentence.

8. Mr. HOARE (United Kingdom) said that he had
abstained in the vote on paragraph 1 because the first
sentence was overloaded with unnecessary material and
because the second sentence was irrelevant and out of
place. Paragraph 2 had been improved by the Swedish
amendment (A/C.3/L.571); and though he disap-
proved of the last sentence, the Danish amendment
(A/C.3/1.576) had counterbalanced it and he had been
able to vote in favour of the paragraph. On the other
band, the adoption of the Romanian amendment (A/
C.3/1.575) had forced him to vote against paragraph
3, as the sentence thus added completely contradicted
the preceding sentence, which had been considerably

A/C.3/SR.738



290 General Assembly—Eleventh Session—Third Committee

improved by the Working Party. The latter sentence
implied that the employment of children, with the ap-
propriate safeguards, was justifiable in exceptional
cases; the Romanian amendment, however, absolutely
prohibited such employment. That made nonsense of
the paragraph, and his delegation had felt that an ab-
stention would not serve to express adequately its
views on the matter. Finally, he had abstained in the
vote on the article as a whole because, although a few
drafting improvements had been made, the text had
been unnecessarily expanded, was worse than the ori-
ginal text, and constituted a bad article.

9. Mr. MASSOUD-ANSARI (Iran) said that he had
originally welcomed the Working Party’s draft (A/
C.3/L.570, para. 4), but had been persuaded by the
arguments of representatives who had pleaded for
brevity, and had accordingly abstained in the vote on
the more detailed elaborations. The Covenants would
gain in force if they were confined to general provi-
sions; he hoped that some of the detail would be
eliminated at a later stage.

10. Mr. KEDADI (Tunisia) said that his country had
achieved its independence only ten months before, and
had set up a Constituent Assembly to draft a constitu-
tion embodying all the fundamental democratic
principles. The Assembly had already drawn up pro-
visions relating to civil and political rights, and the
Tunisian delegation had therefore been able to par-
ticipate in the debates on the first three items of the
Committee’s agenda. However, it would be obliged for
constitutional reasons to abstain on the articles of the
draft Covenant on FEconomic, Social and Cultural
Rights, as it did not wish to prejudge the decisions of
the Constituent Assembly. That attitude should not be
taken to mean that Tunisia was against the moral prin-
ciples involved. On the contrary, it fully supported the
movement for human rights; the Arab-Moslem cultural
group to which it belonged had been in the vanguard
of that movement, and the decisions taken in the Com-
mittee would serve as a basis for the economic, social
and cultural provisions of the Tunisian constitution.
That being so, Tunisia would have no difficulty in sign-
ing the Covenants when they were completed.

11. Lastly, although the original text of article 10 had
seemed satisfactory to his delegation, he considered
the Working Party’s draft even clearer.

12. Miss BERNARDINO (Dominican Republic),
referring to the Uruguayan representative’s remarks,
said that the delegations which had urged the deletion
of the word “particularly” in paragraph 2 had in no
way wished to weaken the provisions according pro-
tection to mothers. It would be absurd to place that
interpretation on the attitude of her own delegation,
which had originally sponsored article 25, paragraph
2, of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights;
moreover, the Constitution of the Dominican Republic
provided for protection to mothers during the period
before and after childbirth. However, the objective
should be to protect the child, and not specifically the
mother; that was why her delegation had always ad-
vocated measures on behalf of mothers during the
period in question. Broader provisions on behalf of
mothers might well place women under a system of
permanent protection which would be detrimental to
their family life and would limit their employment op-
portunities.

13. Mr. HAMILTON (Australia) observed that his
delegation had expressed the hope that the text of ar-

ticle 10 would be clear and concise, and had made
several suggestions to that end. However, that hope
had not been fulfilled, and the deficiencies of the final
text were such that the Australian delegation had been
obliged to abstain in the vote on all the paragraphs
and on the article as a whole. It had voted against cer-
tain provisions and amendments because they were
out of place in article 10, not necessarily because it
objected to the principles involved.

14. Mrs. ROSSEL (Sweden) thanked the represen-
tatives who had understood that in the protection ac-
corded under the Covenant the emphasis should be
shifted from a special protection of the mother to a
general protection of the family. The aim of the article
should be to safeguard the status of the children by
giving such support and aid that the family could de-
cide for itself how best to care for the children. By
such a general, constructive family policy, the singling
out of mothers for special protection, except in con-
nexion with childbirth, would be unnecessary. It might
even be detrimental to her status in society as an equal
to men, for example in the field of employment.

15. She doubted the wisdom of the words “paid leave
for working mothers”. In her view, that was a case for
social security benefits. The Danish amendment (A/
C.3/L.576) seemed to have been presented in that
spirit. However, by being affixed to the previous part
of the sentence, it limited social security benefits to
working mothers, and thus indirectly excluded house-
wives. The final text was a compromise, however, and
although it could be improved, it expressed all the
trends that had been manifested in the Committee, and
had included the basic principles of family protection.

16. Mr. TEKLE (Ethiopia) said that although he
had voted in favour of the article as a whole, his dele-
gation was not entirely satisfied with it. The number
of the amendments submitted and of votes taken was
indicative of the complexity of the final text.

17. He had voted against the last sentence of para-
graph 1 not because his delegation had any objection
to the principle involved, but because the provision
in question had no place in the Covenant on FEco-
nomic, Social and Cultural Rights.

18. Miss AGUIRRE (Mexico) said her delegation
could have voted in favour of the provision that wnar-
riage must be entered into with the free consent of the
intending spouses in its original form and context,
since in conjunction with the statement that the family
was based on marriage, it dealt with the social aspect
of marriage. In the form in which it had been adopted,
however, the provision rightly belonged in the Cove-
nant on Civil and Political Rights. The Mexican dele-
gation had therefore abstained in the vote on the
sentence in question, although it had voted in favour of
paragraph 1 as a whole,

19. Miss MURPHY (Ireland) said that her country
was actively interested in the promotion of international
respect for human rights; her delegation had so far
refrained from taking part in the dehate on the draft
Covenant only because, being new to the subject, it had
wished first to familiarize itself with it.

20. The many arguments to the contrary notwith-
standing, her delegation felt that it would be best to
enunciate the various rights in the draft Covenant in
broad general terms, and to include the provisions for
the implementation of those rights in a single article,
couched in the most comprehensive language, and ap-~



738th meeting—23 January 1957 291

plying to all the rest. The danger of including specific
provisions in the substantive articles was that the enu-
meration might be regarded as exhaustive, and also
that, as the social conscience developed, the Covenant
might very soon become out of date. She was in full
agreement with those who had said that the detailed
definition of economic, social and cultural rights—no
easy task-——should be left to the International Labour
Organisation, with its long experience and appropriate
structure, and to the other specialized agencies con-
cerned. There need be no fear that a covenant couched
in general terms would not differ materially from the
Universal Declaration of Human Rights: whereas the
Declaration had only moral force, the Covenant would
impose binding obligations on the contracting States
to achieve progressively the full realization of the rights
recognized in it. The system of reports provided for in
part IV of the draft Covenant and the vigilance of pub-
lic opinion offered sufficient assurance that those obliga-
tions would be honoured.

21. Her delegation had been compelled to abstain in
the vote on earlier articles largely because they had
been amended to include measures of implementation;
she hoped that that procedure would be reconsidered.
In that connexion, she welcomed the new trend of vot-
ing against unsuitable amendments, rather than merely
abstaining because they embodied laudable principles.
Her delegation would in future adopt that course, in
the hope that better texts would result.

22. In principle, her delegation favoured a single lim-
itations clause such as that contained in article 4. It
had voted for the inclusion of a specific limitation in
article 8 in order to bring that text into line with article
21 of the draft Covenant on Civil and Political Rights
(E/2573, annex I B); but it felt that a final decision
on the retention of that clause could be taken only
after the form of article 4 itself had been definitely de-
termined.

Organization of work

23. Mr. PAZHWAK (Afghanistan) proposed that
consideration of agenda item 32 (Recommendations
concerning international respect for the right of peo-
ples and nations to self-determination) should be de-
ferred to the next session of the General Assembly. It
would be inappropriate to discuss that item until the
Assembly had the draft Covenants before it and had
had the opportunity to consider the article on self-de-
termination, which would affect any action to be taken
either by the United Nations or by Governments i-»
the matter. Furthermore, it was highly desirable to
avoid the possibility of anything being done which
might prejudge such action as might be taken on that
article. Finally, self-determination was a very important
and complex question, which required very careful
study; delegations would not have the time, before the
end of the current session, to obtain instructions from
their Governments, and the Committee itself would not
have time to deal adequately with the question.

24. Miss BERNARDINO (Dominican Republic)
supported the Afghan proposal. At the beginning of the
session she had hoped that there would be time to give
the item adequate consideration; but it was obvious
that that would be impossible, as the debate on the
other agenda items would take some time

25. Mr. BRENA (Uruguay) urged the Committee
to give serious consideration to any procedure which
might help it to complcte at least one of the draft

Covenants at the current session. Under rule 100 of
the rules of procedure of the General Assembly each
Main Committee was expected to complete the con-
sideration of the items referred to it. In the case of the
draft International Covenants on Human Rights, that
could perhaps be accomplished by assigning some of the
work to sub-committees, limiting the time of speakers
and allowing no digressions, or by other methods,
which he hoped other delegations would suggest.

26. Mr. TSAO (China) said he was opposed to the
Afghan proposal. The Committee had an obligation to
discuss all items on its agenda; it should not be asked
to suspend its efforts to promote an important human
right pending the adoption of the draft Covenants;
moreover, delegations had had ample time to receive
instructions from their Governments concerning the
item on self-determination.

27. In reply to the Uruguayan representative, he said
that it was too optimistic to expect the Committee to
complete its consideration of even one of the draft
Covenants at the current session, particularly as it had
other items to consider.

28. Mrs. LORD (United States of America) said
that her delegation had intended to submit a draft
resolution on self-determination; she would not, how-
ever, press for consideration of the item at the current
session if the majority preferred to postpone it.

29. Mr. BAROODY (Saudi Arabia) said that while
his delegation supported the Afghan proposal, it did
so solely for practical reasons since it attached great
importance to the item on self-determination.

30. Mr. KEDADI (Tunisia) opposed the proposal on
humanitarian grounds. The Committee had devoted a
major part of its time to the protection of individual
human rights; but any such rights would be illusory
unless the community in which they were to be exer-
cised was free. His own country had just exercised
its right of self-determination but other peoples were
still shedding their blood to achieve that right. The
Committee should therefore not delay the elaboration
of measures to ensure international respect for the right
of peoples to seli-determination.

31. Mr. EUSTATHIADES (Greece) said that his
delegation was as anxious as any other to promote the
free exercise of the right of self-determination by peo-
ples still fighting for their freedom, particularly the
people of Cyprus. The right of self-determination was
already recognized by the Charter of the United Na-
tions, by various General Assembly resolutions and in
article 1 of the two draft Covenants, the text of which
had been approved by the Third Committee (A/3077,
para. 77) at the tenth session of the General Assembly.
When those instruments were not given effect, they
were sealed with blood. The Cypriots were shedding
their blood to gain their freedom, which they expected
the United Nations to recognize in pursuance of the
Charter. In order not to hamper the Committee’s work,
however, he would not oppose the Afghan proposal.

32. Mr. BRENA (Uruguay) proposed that in order
to give delegations time to consult their Governments
and one another, the vote on the Afghan proposal
should be postponed until the following day.

33, Mr. LIMA (E! Salvador), Mr. PONCE (Ecua-
dor) and Mr. TSAO (China) supported the Uruguayan
motion.



292 General Assembly—Eleventh Session—Third Committee

34. Miss BERNARDINO (Dominican Republic)
said that while she was in favour of the Afghan pro-
posal, she felt that delegations should be allowed time
for reflection and consultation, and she therefore sup-
ported the Uruguayan motion.

35. Mr. CASTANEDA (Mexico) felt that the Com-
mittee should take a decision on the Afghan proposal
at once, in order to be able to proceed with its work
in an orderly manner.

36. He was strongly in favour of postponing con-
sideration of the item on self-determination until the
following session. The item was one of great difficulty
and complexity, and had important political and legal
implications. It should therefore not be discussed
hastily.

37. Mr. MASSOUD-ANSARI (Iran) agreed with
the Afghan representative that the Committee would
be unable at the current session to give the item the
consideration it deserved, but pointed out that it had
already been postponed from the previous session for
similar reasons. There were grounds for fearing that
it might suffer the same fate at the twelfth session

38. Mr. PAZHWAK (Afghanistan) welcomed the
support that had been expressed for his proposal, and
particularly the conciliatory attitude shown by the
United States representative. Although delegations had
had time to receive general instructions concerning the
item on self-determination, they would need to con-
sult their Governments concerning proposals made in
the debate, and they would hardly have time to do so
at the current session. If the Committee should finish
the other items on its agenda before the end of the
session, it could devote the remaining meetings to the
draft Covenants.

39. He thought that the Committee was ready to vote
on his proposal, and he was therefore opposed on prin-
ciple to the Uruguayan motion. However, out of con-
sideration for the delegations which did not wish to
vote immediately, he would abstain on the motion.

The Uruguayan motion to postpone the vote on the
Afghan proposal until the following day was adopted
by 34 wvotes to 11, with 16 abstentions.

The meeting rose at 1 p.m.

Printed in U.S.A.

M—77301—April 1957—2,150



